


Table of Contents

October 20, 2021
Agenda Item #IIL......ccooviiiiiiiiiiii e Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #IV..........cooviians Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of October 6, 2021
Agenda Item #V.................... Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of October 6, 2021

Agenda Item #VIL....coooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicnr e General Manager / Staff Reports



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #I11



™ ™ e e}

a Board of Public Utilities

Kansas City, Kansas
BOARD AGENDA

Regular Session
October 20, 2021 — 6:00 P.M.

I. Call to Order
II. Roll Call

Ryan Eidson, At Large, Position 2

Tom Groneman, District 2

Robert L. Milan, Sr., District 1

Jeff Bryant, District 3

Mary L. Gonzales, At Large, Position 1

Rose Mulvany Henry, At Large, Position 3
I1I. Approval of Agenda
IV. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of October 6, 2021

V. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of October 6, 2021

VI. Public Comments

VII. General Manager / Staff Reports
1. KERA Program Update

ii. KCKCC Economic Development Application
iil. Electric Production Quarterly Report

1v. Miscellaneous Comiments
VIII. Board Comments

IX. Adjourn



Approval of Minutes
Work Session 10-6-21
Agenda [tem #IV



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met
remotely in Work Session on Wednesday, October 6, 2021 at 5:00 P.M. The following Board
Members were on the teleconference: Robert L. Milan, President; Mary Gonzales, Vice
President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Secretary; Thomas Groneman Jeff Bryant, and Ryan
Eidson.

Also on teleconference: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Deputy
Chief Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Johnetta
Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service; Jeremy Ash, Executive Director Electric
Operations; Jerry Ohmes, Executive Director Electric Supply; Steve Green, Executive
Director Water Operations; Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production; Jerry
Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer;
Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager; Dennis Dumovich, Director Human Resources; Patrice
Townsend, Director Utility Services, and Randy Otting, Director Accounting.

A tape of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities.
Mr. Milan called the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M.
Roll call was taken, all Board members were present.

Item #3 — Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Ms. Gonzales, seconded by Mr.
Groneman and unanimously carried.

Item #4 — Board Updates / GM Updates

Ms. Mulvany Henry asked Mr. Johnson about the status of the updated Economic
Development application from KCKCC.

Mr. Johnson said they would be meeting over the latest information received from
KCKCC and then he would report back to the Board.

Mr. Eidson requested that the Board receive presentations in advance in order to have
an opportunity to review before the Work Session.

Page 1 of2



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2021
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

Jtem #5 — 2022 Budget Workshop — 2022 Staffing Plan

Mr. Dennis Dumovich, Director Human Resources, presented the staffing plan to the
Board, outlining the 2022 budget goals for the utility to continue providing necessary
services. The presentation also included reflection on information covered in previous
benchmark comparisons as well as employment trends. (See the attached PowerPoint
presentation. )

Mr. Johnson and Mr. Dumovich answered questions from the Board.

Item #6 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Work Session at 5:35 P.M. by Ms. Mulvany,
seconded by Mr. Bryant and carried unanimously.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 2 of 2






















































Approval of Minutes
Regular Session 10-6-21
Agenda [tem #V



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met
remotely in Regular Session on Wednesday, October 6, 2021 at 6:00 P.M. The following Board
Members were on the teleconference: Robert L. Milan, President; Mary Gonzales, Vice
President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Secretary; Jeff Bryant, Thomas Groneman, and Ryan Eidson.

Also on teleconference: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Deputy
Chief Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Jeremy Ash,
Executive Director Electric Operations; Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service;
Steve Green, Executive Director Water Operations; Jerry Ohmes, Executive Director Electric
Supply; Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production; Jerry Sullivan, Chief Information
Officer; David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer; Dennis Dumovich, Director of
Human Resources; Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager; Phillip Brown, Senior Civil Engineer;
Randy Otting, Director Accounting; and Patrice Townsend, Director Utility Services.

A tape of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities.

Mr. Milan called the Board Meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. He welcomed all that were
listening to or viewing the meeting. He stated that the Board felt it was necessary to offer the
use of technology for staff as well as for the general public. Those wishing to offer comments
during the Public Comments section could click on the raised hand feature at the bottom of the
application or window or press Star 9 and be connected by phone. As always, the public could
email or call the BPU with any concerns. The agenda could be found on the BPU website. If
they were using Zoom, it would appear on their screen. Mr. Milan introduced himself and the
other Board Members along with the General Manager, and Legal Counsel.

Roll call was taken and all Board Members were present via teleconference.

Item #3 — Approval of Amended Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Amended Agenda by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms.
Mulvany Henry, and unanimously carried.

Item #5 — Approval of Regular Session Minutes of September 15, 2021

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Regular Session of September 15,
2021 by Mr. Eidson, seconded by Ms. Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

Page 1 of5



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #6— Public Comments

Ms. Louise Lynch, 737 Miami Ave., addressed the Board regarding issues with the

KERA program, the United Way’s distribution of ARPA funds, and the moratorium.

Ty Gorman, 2843 Parkwood Blvd, echoed Ms. Lynch’s comments on the moratorium

and also spoke about scheduling a meeting with BPU.

Mr. Beto Lugo with Clean Air Now, also wanted to comment on his support of extending

the moratorium.

Item #9 — General Manager / Staff Reports

ii.

KERA Program Update: Ms. Patrice Townsend, Director Utility Services, updated the
Board on the application assistance and statistics for the KERA program. She also
reported that El Centro is helping customers, including homeowners, with gap
payments.

Ms. Townsend and Ms. Hinson answered questions from the Board.
Moratorium Update: Ms. Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service, gave
a Delinquent Customer Analysis presentation to assist the Board with the moratorium

discussion (see attached).

Ms. Hinson, Mr. Johnson, and Ms. Austin addressed questions and comments from the
Board.

After a motion was made and discussion ensued, the motion was modified to read:
A motion was made to end the moratorium on November 3, 2021 with the

understanding that BPU would put a full court press on communication to the public
about that end date, by Ms. Mulvany Henry, seconded by Mr. Groneman.

Page 2 of 5



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

iil.

1v.

Roll call:

Mr. Eidson — Yes

Mr. Groneman — Yes

Mr. Milan — No

Mr. Bryant — Yes

Ms. Gonzales — No

Ms. Mulvany Henry - Yes

The motion carried 4 — 2.

August 2021 Financials: Ms. Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Administrative Officer, presented the August 2021 Financials with a PowerPoint

presentation (see attached).

Ms. Austin and Mr. Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production, answered
questions from the Board.

A motion was made to approve the August 2021 Financials as presented, by Mr.
Bryant, seconded by Mr. Eidson and carried unanimously.

Electric Operations Budget Transfer: Mr. Jeremy Ash, Executive Director Electric
Operations, made a request to the Board to transfer monies from three projects that
they would not be able to get to due to various reasons, including lead times and costs.
He requested that those dollars be put into the Distribution Pole Replacement and
Inspection Program (see attached).

A motion was made to accept the Electric Operations Budget Transfer as presented by
Mr. Eidson, seconded by Mr. Bryant and carried unanimously.

Resolution #5267 KDHE Water Loan Approval: Ms. Austin and Ms. Kathy Peters,
Kutak Rock LLP, reviewed the steps which had been taken to obtain the Kansas Health

Page 3 of 5



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

and Environment (KDHE) Water Supply Loan. She asked that the Board approve the
execution of the loan agreement between KDHE and BPU.

A motion was made to approve Resolution #5267, authorizing the execution of the
Loan Agreement by Ms. Gonzales, seconded by Ms. Mulvany Henry and carried
unanimously.

vi.  Miscellaneous Comments: Mr. Johnson recognized that this week was Public Power
Week and thanked staff for their continuous service to the utility and the community.

Item #10 — Board Comments

Mr. Eidson thanked everyone for their presentations. He asked Mr. Johnson about the
bill redesign and if the UG was assisting with payment of that.

Mr. Johnson said that the goal for rollout was November 11, 2021. Regarding the UG
assistance, they had been requested to pay half of the build-out and implementation charge
for the redesign. As it turned out, there was not a charge for that.

Mr. Groneman had no comments.

Mr. Bryant spoke about the Board’s job of balancing financial responsibility and
supporting the community needs. He expressed his appreciation of the other members of the
Board.

Ms. Gonzales echoed Mr. Johnson’s comments about Public Power Week.

Ms. Mulvany Henry asked Mr. Johnson if merit increases for non-bargaining employees
were going to be evaluated at the end of 2021.

Mr. Johnson said that he was hoping to evaluate that for 2021. He also confirmed that
the increases given in 2020 were not retro-active to the beginning of the year.

Mr. Milan spoke about the moratorium and getting the word out to customers.

Page 4 of 5



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2021
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #11 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Regular Session at 8:28 P.M. by Mr. Eidson,
seconded by Ms. Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page S of 5














































































7 Kansas City
‘ Board of Public Utilities

TO: General Manager

FROM: Jeremy Ash

(Division Manager)

DATE: September 28, 2021 e

SUBJECT: Budget Transfers

DESCRIPTION AND REASON FOR TRANSFER:

The distribution pole inspection program is new to electric operations and the pole plant inspected is failing at a higher

rate than industry average. Electric Operations can transfer the funds from the projects listed below due to the fact that

the projects have slowed or completely stopped as a result of both manpower and supply chain restraints.

FROM

1 :

-

2

Project Budget

100679

101190

100694

Project Description

Muncie OH Feeders

Fiberglass OH Feeders

Piper OH Feeders

Task Number

Task Project Description

Operating Unit Electric Electric Electric
Department 2110 2110 2110
Class (If operating expense) 2000 2000 2000
Amount 500,000.00 500,000.00 750,000.00
Project Budget 104029

Project Description

Dist Pole Inspection & Replace

Task Number

Task Project Description

Operating Unit Electric
Department 2100
Class (If operating expense) 2110
Amount 1,750,000.00

IF THE TRANSFER INVOLVES A PROJECT, THE PROJECT NUMBER MUST BE SPECIFIED ABOVE.

AT L
TS /@MANAGE APPROVAL

CC: Corporate Accounting

[0 -7-202]

DATE




RESOLUTION NOQ. 5267

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LOAN AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES OF THE UNIFIED
GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE COUNTY/KANSAS CITY, KANSAS AND THE
STATE OF KANSAS, ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE KANSAS
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT, FOR THE PURPOSE OF
GBTAINING A LOAN FROM THE KANSAS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY FUND
FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING A PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY PROJECT;
ESTABLISHING A DEDICATED SOURCE OF REVENUE FOR REPAYMENT OF
SUCH LOAN; AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN
CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE LOAN AGREEMENT.

WHEREAS, the Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 [PL 104-182] to the Safe Drinking
Water Act (the “Federal Act™) established the Drinking Water Loan Fund 1o assist public water supply
systems in financing the costs of infrastructure needed to achieve or maintain compliance with the Federal
Act and 1o protect the public health, and authorized the Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) to
administer a revolving loan program operated by the individual states; and

WHEREAS, to fund the state revolving fund program, the EPA will make annual capitalization
grants to the states, on the condition that each state provide a state match for such state’s revolving fund;
and

WHEREAS, by passage of the Kansas Public Waler Supply Loan Act, K.S.A. 65-163d ¢r seq., as
amended (the “Loan Act™), the State of Kansas (the “State”) has established the Kansas Public Water
Supply Loan Fund (the “Revolving Fund™) for purposes of the Federal Act; and

WHEREAS, under the Loan Act, the Secretary of the Kansas Department of Health and
Environment ("KDHE™) 1s given the responsibility for administration and management of the Revolving
Fund: and

WHEREAS, the Kansas Development Finance Authority (the “Authornity™) and KDHE have
entered into a Master Indenture (the “Master Indenture™) pursuant to which KDHE agrees to enter into Loan
Agreements with Municipalities for public water supply system projects (the “Projects™) and to pledge the
Loan Repayments (as defined in the Master Indenture) received pursuant 1o such Loan Agreements Lo the
Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Authorily 15 authorized under £.5.A. 74-8905{a) and the Loan Act to issuc
revenue bonds (the “Bonds™) for the purpose of providing funds to implement the State’s requirements
under the Federal Act and to loan the same, together with available funds from the EPA capitalization
grants, to Municipalities within the State for the payment of Project Costs (as said terms are defined in the
Loan Act) and

WHEREAS, the Board of Public Utilities (the “*BPU™) of the Unified Government of Wyandotte
County’Kansas City, Kansas (the “Unified Government™), an administrative agency of the Unified
Government, operates the Unified Government's public water supply and distribution system (the
“System); and



WHEREAS, the BPU is 2 municipality as said term is defined in the Loan Act, and the System is
a Public Water Supply System, as said term is defined in the Loan Act; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the BPU (the “BPU Governing Body") has heretofore
determined it to be in the best needs of the customers of the Systemn to undertake certain modifications and
improvements to the System, including (i) 7 MG Argentine Reservoir at an estimated cost of $10,000,000,
(ii) replace aging distribution mains at an estimated cost of $9,000,000, (iii) transmission main from 90t
and Parallel to I-4335 and France Family Drive at an estimated cost of $2,000,000, (iv) electrical
improvements at Nearman Water Treatment Plant and pumping stations at an estimated cost of $1,500,000
and (v) replace 24-inch main at 12* Street and Kansas River at an estimated cost of $2,500,000
(collectively, the “Projects™), and to pay Loan origination costs; and

WHEREAS, the BPU has, pursuant to the Loan Act and as authorized by Resolution No. 5260,
submitted an Application to KDHE to obtain a loan from the Revolving Fund in an amount not to exceed
$25,000,000.00 to finance the costs of the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. R-29-21 approved April 8, 2021, the Unified Government
authorized the BPU to obtain the hereinafier described Loan; and

WHEREAS, the BPU has taken all steps necessary and complied with all requirements of the Loan
Actand the provisions of K.A.R. 28-13-50 through 28-15-65 (the “Regulations™) applicable thereto necessary
to qualify for the hereinafter described Loan; and

WHEREAS, KDHE has informed the BPU that it has been approved for a loan in an amount of not
to exceed $25,000,000.00 (the “Loan™) in order ta finance the Project; and

WHEREAS, the govening body of the BPU hereby finds and determines that it is necessary and
desirable to accept the Loan and to enter into a Loan Agreement and certain other doecuments relating thereto,
and 1o take centain actions required in order to implement the Loan Agreement;

NOW, THEREFGRE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES OF THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE
COUNTY/KANSAS CITY, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Autherization and Approval of Loan Agreement. The BPU is hereby authorized to
accepl the Loan and to enter into a cerfain Loan Agreement with an effective date of August 23, 2021, with the
State of Kansas acting by and through the Kansas Department of Health and Environment (the “Loan
Agreement”), to finance the Project Costs (as defined in the Loan Agreement). The General Manager of the
BPU is hereby authorized to enter into the Loan Agreement in substantially the form presented to the Board of
Directors this date, with such changes therein as shail be approved by the General Manager of the BPU and the
BPU’s [cgal counsel, such General Manager's execution of the Loan Agreement being conclusive evidence of
their approval thereof.

Section 2. Establishment of Dedicated Source of Revenue for Repayment of Loan. Pursuant to
the Act, the BPU hereby establishes the Systern Revenues (as defined in the Loan Agreement} as the dedicated
source of revenue for repayment of the Loan. The Loan constitutes Subordinate Debt as defined in the Second
Amended and Restated Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2014 by and between the Unified Government
and Security Bank of Kansas City, as Trustee (as heretafore and hereafter amended and supplemented, the
“Indenture”). In accordance therewith, the BPU shall fix, establish, maintain and collect such rates, fees and
charges for the use and services fumished by or through the System, including all improvements and additions
thereto hereafier constructed or acquired by the BPU, as will provide revenues sufficient to (a) pay the cost of

(O]



the operation and maintenance of the System, (b) pay the principal of and interest on the Loan, any Existing
Revenue Obligations and Additional Revenue Obligations (as said terms are defined in the Loan Agreement)
as and when the same become due, and (c) pay all other amounts due at any time under the Loan Agreement.
Such dedicated source of revenue is hereby pledged as security for repayment of the Loan, provided that such
pledge shall be subordinate and junior in all respects to the pledge of the Trust Estate by the Indenture as
security for the Bonds, as such terms are defined in the Indenture,

Sectien 3. Further Authority. The President, Secretary, General Manager and other officers, agents
and employees of the BPU are hereby further authorized and directed to execute any and all documents and
take such actions as they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of
this Resolution, and to make alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, statements,
instruments and other documents herein approved, authorized and confirmed which they may approve, and the
execution or taking of such action shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity or advisability,

Section 4, Governing Law. The Resolution and the Loan Agreement shall be govemed exclusively
by and construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Kansas.

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its
adoption by the Board of Directors of the BPU.

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Board of Public Utilities of the Unified Government of
Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas, this 6th day of October, 2021.

BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

STt 7 it Do

President

ATTEST:
DocuSigned by:
Kos Mu!wmx? i
——732C225A5805456 . -

Secre{afywm T



CERTIFICATE OF RECORDING OFFICER

The undersigned, duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Public Utilities of the Unified
Govemment of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas, does hereby certify: '

That the attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted at a legally convened
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Board of Public Utilities of the Unified Government of Wyandotte
County/Kansas City, Kansas held on the 6" day of October, 2021; and, further, that such resolution has been
fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in the official BPU records.

-4
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this (p‘h day of October, 2021.

DocuSigned by:
Kose MW K
732C225A5806456 . M
Secretary









